Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company
Baltimore City, Maryland

B-1094

private, 1916

Statement of Significance

The Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company, founded in 1896,
was the nation's largest manufacturer of porcelain enamel signs
in the 1930's. Originally located in Locust Point, the company
moved to a newly-constructed 250,000 square feet plant in Mt.
Winans in 1919. This brick complex is a good example of

"suburban'" industrial plants of this period.
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State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 2121/2125 Wicomico Street not for publication
city, townBaltimore ____vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use

district — public ____occupied ____agriculture — __ museum

— building(s) X private A unoccupied ___ commercial —park
— structure ___both _____work in progress —_ educational —_ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible _ entertainment —_religious
— object —_in process X __ yes: restricted —_government —_ scientific
____being considered ____yes: unrestricted ____industrial — transportation
_Xnot applicable ___ no —__ military X__ other: UNOCCUPTED

4. Owner Of Property (glve names and malllng addresses of all owners)

name National Can Company

street & number 1915 Aliceanna Street telephone no.: 563-7000

city, town Baltimore state and zip code Maryland 21231

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore City Courthouse liberCWM 4082

ik K mbar Fayette and Calvert Streets folio 82
Baltimore

city,town p.1+ state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing #istorical surveys

‘e None

date — federal ____state ____county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description | Survey No.

B-1094
Condition Check one Check one
—_ excellent X deteriorated _X__ unaltered —Xoriginal site
—___good —_ruins —_ altered —_ moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Constructed in 1916, the Baltimore Enamel and Novelty
Company i1illustrates a marked tendency in the early twentieth
century to separate administrative from manufacturing func-
tions in shop complexes. This structure is divided into an
office building on the east and manufacturing space adjacent
on the west. Despite this separation, the functional re-
quirements dictated that the two be integrated.

The office structure is a two-story brick masonry build-
ing fourteen bays wide and two bays deep. Most bays have
three double hung sash windows except for the end bays and
those where shipping needs required changes. The structure
faces the tracks of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad spur and
the second floor is level with a loading platform along the
track. Consequently the second floor contained the offices
and facilities of the shipping department. A bridge from the
loading dock enters the shipping room in the northern end at
this level. The shipping room is connected to the shipping
department offices at the south end of the building and to the
warehouse by a fire door in the western wall. The first floor
was occupied by other corporate offices.

The manufacturing building consists of a central, two-
story structure flanked by one story wings, the three being
the same width as the office. This structure is of brick con-
struction with steel column and beam support. The roof of the
center portion is a low gable supported by three rows:-of tim-
ber posts and beams.

Manufacturing operations were concentrated on the first
level, a departure from the multi-story plants of the nine-
teenth century. The plant was located in a somewhat unsettled
area where land was relatively inexpensive and the advantage
of single story production could be developed. The second
floor of the central portion was used as a warehouse only.

The process began in the Press Room, which occupied the
northern wing. Large stamping presses formed the sheets of
timplate to the desired shape for signs, utensils, and other
company products. After cleaning in caustic and then in acid,
the objects were taken to the Dipping Department in the central
portion of the building. Like all machine-based plants, the
company relied on its own machinists to keep the large presses
and other machines in operation. The machine shop was located
in the east end of the north wing, near the presses. The ma-
chine shop also produced the large dies for the presses, a
cornerstone of the company's success.

(continued)



8. Significance " Survey No., B-1094

F

reriod Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion
—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —_conservation — law —__science
—1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics —literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 ____ architecture — education — military — social/
— 1700-1799 __art —___engineering — __ music humanitarian
1800-1899 __ commerce — exploration/settlement __ philosophy — theater
I 1900- ____ communications A industry — politics/government _ transportation
—_invention —_other (specify)
Specificdates 1016 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A B C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: A B € Bt i, 16
Level of Significance: _ national _ state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Baltimore Enameling and Novelty Company, founded in 1896,
was the nation's largest manufacturer of porcelain enamel signg in
the 1930's. Originally located in Locust Point, the company moved
to this newly-constructed 250,000 feet plant in Mt. Winans in 1919,
This two and one-story brick complex is a good example of '"surburban"
industrial plants of this period.

The Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company was founded as the
Baltimore Enameling Company in 1896 by Rudolph Drinhaus, a malt
salesman and Theodore Zivermann, an employee at Matthai Ingram and
Company (which was later absorbed by the National Enamel and Stamping
Company). The capital for the venture was provided by Henry Brehm, a
brewery owner. The company, originally located at Woodall and
Clement Streets in Locust Point, manufactured enameled cooking uten-
sils and enameled signs by applying a form of glass to sheet metal.
Their enamel signs were the first such product made in the U.S.

In 1901, the company was reorganized and the name changed to the
Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company.

By 1916, the company was ready to expand its operations in
Locust Point, but a dispute with the city over taxes led to the pur-
chase of land in Mt. Winans, just over the city line in Baltimore
County, near the Maryland Glass Company. The new plant was built in
1917 and 1918, though by the time it was ready to be occupied in 1919
Mt. Winans had become a part of Baltimore City. By 1939, Baltimore
Enamel and Novelty Company was the largest manufacturer of porcelain
enamel signs in the country. The company employed between 350 - 400

workers in their 250,000 square feet producing a fine line of enameled

signs as well as storefronts which were promoted for their beauty,
cleanliness and permanence. The Company noted that after the Great
Fire of 1904, a large Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company sign of
the Seaboard Air Line Railway which was in the heart of the fire

|

district was found undamaged.
(continued)



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. B_1094

Baltimore magazine January 1939

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale
UTM References (o NOT complete UTM references : g
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte [Leslie Barr, Ann Steele, Dennis Zembala

organization Baltimore Museum of Industry date July 1983
street & number 1415 Key Highway telephone ~ 727-4808
city or town Baltimore éiate Maryiand .

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

- _The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and-m
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company
Baltimore City, Maryland
B-1094

Pl

The Dipping Department consisted of large vats and tables
where the glass frit was applied to the metal. This was done
either by spraying, stenciling, or screen printing. The dried
signs were then baked in ovens to fuse the glass particles.

The Furnace Room occupied the south wing of the building.
This structure has a metal roof supported on steel trusses con-
sistent with the presence of an increased fire hazard. A raised
monitor runs in the center of the clear span for ventilation.
Several individual furnaces along the south wall were used for
small ware. A continuous baffle furnace was later installed to
handle signs as wide as six feet.

East of the office building and adjacent to the railroad
tracks 1s the former powerhouse. This is a high one-story brick
masonry building with a roof supported on riveted steel trusses.
Inside, a brick wall divides it into a boiler room and an engine
room. Three original boilers still remain, manufactured in 1917
by the Casey-Hedges Company of Chatanooga, Tennessee. In the
engine room, a set of generators and the switch panel still re-
main although the dynamo engines have been removed. A duplex
steam powered water pump still remains.

The entire complex ceased operations several years ago and
is in very deteriorated condition.



Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company
B-1094
Baltimore City, Maryland

8.1

Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company purchased sheet metal
from a number of area rolling mills, and sent the sheets through
their cutting department to be machine cut into various shapes.
Many of them were then stamped into a special design on large
punch presses. The firm had a major die making department to
produce the dies for the stamping presses. Other areas of the
plant included a welding shop, pickling shop and enameling shop.
The firm's special enamel was made at the plant from a mixture
of clay, coloring, water and "frit" (fine bits of white glass).
The coats of enamel were fired to the metal in the burning
department, where sheets were sent through a giant continuous
furnace and heated to a temperature of 1500°F - 1600°F. In
1939 the company had a 2,000 square feet per hour firing capa-
city. This furnace, erected in 1925, was one of the first con-
tinuous furnaces in the country and the first in the sign industry.
The Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company also built the first
furnace in the country large enough to enamel signs six feet in
height. They also developed a permanent red color enamel.

The Baltimore Enamel and Novelty Company was bought out by
the Baltimore Porcelain Steel Corporation in 1946. In 1956, the
property was sold to the Continental Milling and Feed Company, who
owned it until 1961, when it was bought by R § R Realty Company.
The Maryland Glass Company bought it in 1970, the Kelly Glass
Company in 1978, and the National Can Company, its present owners,
bought the property in 1981.
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